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Check all items aftached:
Copy of IRS Retum

Audited Financial Statements
Reviewed Financial Statements
Copy of Form IFC

$15 Annual Report Filing Fee
§100 Late Report Filing Fee

Are contiibutions to the organizafion fex deductible?  Yes IE No I:I

11/20/1980
.

V. CHARITABLE

. SUMMARY OF ALL REVENUE ITEMS DURING THE YEAR:

ll. SUMMARY OF ALL EXPENDITURES DURING THE YEAR

O) TOTAL EXPENDITURES THIS PERIOD {ADD L, M & N)

lll. SUMMARY OF ALL PAID FUNDRAISER & CONSULTANT ACTIVITIES
{Attach Attornay General Report of incividual Fundraising Campaign (Form IFC), One for each PFR.)
PROFESSIONAL_FUNDRAISERS;

+ PROFESSIONAL FUNDRAISING CONSULTANTS:

5) TOTAL AMOUNT PAID TO PROFESSIONAL FUNDRAISING CONSULTANTS
IV. COMPENSATION TO THE (3) HIGHEST PAID FERSONS DURING THE YEAR:

T) NAME, TITLE:

Legal Name: REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION YEAR-END
PROJECT, TNC. AMOUNTS

Mail Address: 202 MARKET STREET A) ASSETS NS 5,428,450

City, State: ROCKFORD IL B) LIABILITIES | B)$ 584,852

Zip Code: _61107-3954 4,843,558

D} PUBLIC SUPPORT, CONTRIBUTIONS AND PROGRAM SERVICE REV (GROSS AMTS.) 359 D} § 1,327,904
E) GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND MEMBERSHIP DUES 62% EY$ 2,408,403
F) OTHER REVENUES 3% F)§ 103,440
G) TOTAL REVENUES, INCOME AND CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED (ADD D, E & F) 100% 3% 3.839. 747

H) OPERATING CHARITABLE PROGRAM EXPENSE 79% H) § 2,454,600
)) EDUCATION PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSE % hs

J) TOTAL CHARITABLE PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSE {ADD H & I) T9% J§ 2,454,600
J1) JOINT COSTS ALLGCATED TO PRCGRAM SERVICES (INCLUDED IN J)$

K) GRANTS TO CTHER CHARITABLE ORGANIZATICNS ; % K) S

[) TOTAL CHARITABLE PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENDITURE (ADD J & K) T79% L$ 2,454,600
M) MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSE 13% M) $ 382,911
N) FUNDRAISING EXPENSE 8% N) 8 251,555

3,0

P} TOTAL AMOUNT RAISED BY FPAID PROFESSIONAL FUNDRAISERS 100% P)$
() TCTAL FUNCRAISERS FEES AND EXPENSES %o Q)8
R) NET RECEIVED BY THE CHARITY (P MINUS Q = R) % R) §

U) NAME, TITLE:

V) NAME, TITLE;

JACKIE SUNDQUIST EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TS 121,826
AMY MORRIS DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR | U)§ 107,802
XAVIER WHITFORD CFO V) § 92,032

W) DESCRIPTION:
X} DESCRIPTION:
Yy DESCRIPTION:

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: CHARITAELE PRCGRAM (3 HIGHEST BY § EXPENDED) GODE CATEGORIES

List on back side of Instructions

COCE

SERVICES FOR PHYSICALLY DISAELED PFRSONS W) # 100
SERVICES FOR HEARING-IMPATRED PERSONS X)# 125
) #
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REGIONAL. ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827
IF THE ANSWER TO ANY OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS IS YES, ATTACH A DETAILED EXPLANATION: ves | NO
1. WAS THE ORGANIZATION THE SUBJECT OF ANY COURT ACTION, FINE, PENALTY OR JUDGEMENT? 1. X

2. HAS THE ORGANIZATION OR A CURRENT DIRECTOR, TRUSTEE, OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE THEREOF,
EVER BEEN CONVICTED BY ANY COURT OF ANY MISDEMEANOR INVOLVING THE MISUSE OR
MISAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS OR ANY FELONY? . 2, X

3. DID THE ORGANIZATION MAKE A GRANT AWARD OR CONTRIBUTION TQ ANY ORGANIZATION IN WHICH
ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS OR TRUSTEES OWNS AN INTEREST; OR WAS IT A PART TO ANY
TRANSACTION IN WHICH ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS OR TRUSTEES HAS A MATERIAL FINANCIAL
INTEREST; OR DID ANY OFFICER, DIRECTOR OR TRUSTEE RECEIVE ANYTHING OF VALUE NOT
REPORTED AS COMPENSATIONT .o s s v s e s e s s s st b s 9 X

4. HAS THE ORGANIZATION INVESTED IN ANY CORPORATE STOCK IN WHICH ANY OFFICER, DIRECTOR
OR TRUSTEE OWNS MORE THAN 10% OF THE OUTSTANDING SHARES? 4, X

5. 18 ANY PROPERTY OF THE ORGANIZATION HELD IN THE NAME OF OR COMMINGLED WITH
THE PROPERTY OF ANY OTHER PERSON OR ORGANIZATION? U X

6. DID THE ORGANIZATION USE THE SERVICES OF A PROFESSIONAL FUNDRAISER? (ATTACH FORM IFC.) 6. X

7a. DID THE ORGANIZATION ALLOCATE THE COST OF ANY SOLICITATION, MAILING, ADVERTISEMENT OR
LITERATURE COSTS BETWEEN PROGRAM SERVICE AND FUNDRAISING EXPENSES? .................................... 7T X

7b. IF “YES’, ENTER
() THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF THESE JOINT COSTS § :
(I) THE AMOUNT ALLOCATED TO PROGRAM SERVICES § ;
(Il THE AMOUNT ALLOCATED TO MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL $ ; AND
(IV) THE AMOUNT ALLOCATED TO FUNDRAISING $

8. DID THE ORGANIZATION EXPEND ITS RESTRICTED FUNDS FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN RESTRICTED

PURPOSES? . [T - X
9. HAS THE ORGANIZATION EVER BEEN REFUSED REGISTRATION OR HAD ITS REGISTRATION OR

TAX EXEMPTION SUSPENDED OR REVOKED BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY? .. . . . g X
10. WAS THERE OR DO YOU HAVE ANY KNOWLEDGE OF ANY KICKBACK, BRIBE OR ANY THEFT, DEFALCATION,

MISAPPROPRIATION, COMMINGLING OR MISUSE OF ORGANIZATIONAL FUNDS? 1o X

11. LIST THE NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS WHERE THE ORGANIZATION MAINTAINS ITS
THREE LARGEST ACCOUNTS:

SEE STATEMENT 1

12. NAME AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF CONTACT PERSON:.JACKIE SUNDQUIST

815-968-7467

* ALL ATTACHMENTS MUST ACCOMPANY THIS REPORT — SEE INSTRUCTIONS -

UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, | (WE) THE UNDERSIGNED DECLARE AND CERTIFY THAT | (WE) HAVE EXAMINED THIS ANNUAL REPORT
AND THE ATTACHED DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING ALL THE SCHEDULES AND STATEMENTS, AND THE FACTS THEREIN STATED ARE TRUE
AND COMPLETE AND FILED WITH THE ILLINCIS ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR THE PURPOSE OF HAVING THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS RELY THEREUPON. | HEREBY FURTHER AUTHORIZE AND AGREE TO SUBMIT MYSELF AND THE REGISTRANT HEREBY TO THE
JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

BE SURE TO INCLUDE ALL FEES DUE:  pREGIDENT or TRUSTES (PRINT NAME)

1) REPORTS ARE DUE WITHIN SIX . ;
MONTHS OF YOUR FISCAL YEAR END. A ! LL_”J,& CLSN\. a,d'._’ % IQ/SE;/_IML*

2) FOR FEES DUE, SEE INSTRUCTIONS. TREASIRER or TRUSTEE (PRINT NAME) SIGNATURE DATE
3.) REPORTS THAT ARE LATE CR

INCOMPLETE ARE SUBJECT TO

A $100.00 PENALTY. CURTIS D. KLECKLER /y /?

PREPARER (PRINT NAME) BISNATURE Dy’rE
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rrt 990

Dapariment of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Sandce

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c}, 527, or 4847 (a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations)
Do not enter soclal securlty numbers on this form as it may be made public.
Go to www.irs.qoviForm30 for instructions and the latest information.

| OMB No. 15450047

2023

A _For the 2023 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07 /01/23 | and ending 06/30/24

B Check If applicabls:

Address

D Nariig change
(] wiel retum

Final retum¢
ferminated

D Amended teturn s
D Application pending

C Name of crganization

REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION

D Employer identiflcatlon number

change PROJECT ’ INC,
Deing kusiness as 36—-3149 8 2 7
Number and streel {or P.O. box if mail is not deliverad to slreet address) Reom/suite E Telephons number
202 MARKET STREET 815-968-7467

City or town, stale or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

ROCKFORD IL, 61107-3954

G _Gioss recelpls§

3,839,747

Name and address of principal officer:

JACKIE SUNDQUIST
202 MARKET STREET

Hia} Is this & group ratum for subordinates? D Yes @ No

H{b} Are all subordinales included?

|:|Yea DNo

ROCKFORD IT. 6110 '7 If "No," attach & list. See instructions
1 Taxoxempt status: Xl 501{c)(3) |_| soi(ey  { Y finsert no.) |_| 4947{a){1) or |—_| 527
J  Webslhe: WWIW . RAMPCIL . ORG H{c} Group axemptlon number
nization: Ifl Corporation |_| Trust |_| Association |—| Other | L Year of formaton: 1980 l M_Stale of legal domiclle: IL
Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant aclivities:
8 . BULLDING AN INCLUSIVE COMMUNITY THAT ENCOURAGES INDIVIDUALS WITH . ...
§  DISABILITIES TO REACH THEIR FULL BOTENTIAL i e
o
é 2 Cheack this box [:l if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of ifs net assets.
o | 3 Number of veling members of the goveming body (Part VA, ine 1) 3 13
8| 4 Number of Independent voting members of the goveming body (Part Vi, line 16} 4 | 13
| 6 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2023 {Part V,line2e) | 5 [ B3
S| & Total number of volunteers (estmate ff necessary) 8 | 91
7aTotal unrelated business revenug from Part VI, colwrn (C), line 12 7a 0
h Net unrelated business taxabla ingome from Form 990-T, Part L fine 11 ... . 0o viiiiii i 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contrbutions and grants (Part VIIl, fine 1) . 2,447,706 3,192,824
g 9 Program service revenue (Pat VA, line2g) 640,357 508,573
& | 10 Investment income {(Part VIl column (4), lines 3, 4, and 7y 9,678 103,440
% | 11 Other revenue (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 8¢, 10c, and 11} -38,623 -48,318
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 {must equal Part VIIl, column (&), ine 123 ... ... 3,059,118 3,756,518
13 Granis and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), ines -3 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), linedy 0
g | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, comn (A), fines 5-10) 2,361,991 2,464,465
g 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part 1X, column (A), line 11g) 0
2.
| 47 Other expenses {Part IX, column (A}, lines 11a—11d, 112-24¢) 525,057 541,372
18 Total expenses. Add nes.13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (&), ne 25) 2,887,048) 3,005,837
19 Revenue less expenses, Subtrsct line 18 fromlinet2 . 172,070 750,681
58 Beginning of Cumrent Year End of Year
B2 20 Total sssets (Part X, fine 16) 4,478,084 5,428,450
%: 21 Tolal lighilites (Part X, lne 28y 466,328 584,892
uﬁug_ _22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 fromfne20 . .. 4,011,756 4,843,558

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and fo the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
frue, correct, and complete, Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Slgnature of officer Date
Here JACKIE SUNDQUIST EXEC. DIR.

Type or print names and litle

PrintType preparer's name Preparers signature Dale Check I:l #| PTIN
Paid CURTIS D. XLECKLER CURTIS D. KLECKLER 12/19/24 selterployed | P0G 541247
Preparer | b nams BENNING GROUP, LILC Fir's EIN 30-0003878
Use Only 6815 WEAVER RD STE 300

Fimts address ROCKYORD, IL 61114-8060 pronero.  815-316-2375

May the IRS discuss this retum with the preparar shown above? See instructions

|_| Yes |_|No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
CAA

Form 990 1z023)
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Form'g_g_q__(zozs) REGIONAT, ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 2
 Partlll.  Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part W D

1 Biiefly describe the organization's mission:
BUILDING AN INCLUSIVE COMMUNITY THAT ENCOQURAGES INDIVIDUALS WITH

2 Did the organization undertaka any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ?
if "Yes," dascribe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the crganization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVCES? e e e [ Yes [%] No
If "fes," describe these changes on Schedule O,

4  Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c}3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are requirad to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4b (Code: ) Expenses & L including grants of § L ) (Revenue & . )
N e
4c (Code: ) @Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue 8 )
B
4d Cther program services (Describe on Schedule ©.)
{Expenses $ includiing grants of § ) {Revenug $ )
4e Total program service expenses 2,454,600

DAA Fom 990 @ozy
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Form 990 (2023) REGTIONAT, ACCESS & MOBILTZATTION 36-3149827 Page 3
P Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes [ No

1 Is the organization described in section 501(¢)(3) or 4947(a)(1) {other than a private foundation)? /f "Yes,”

complete Schedule A 11X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions . X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition te

candidates for public office? if "Yes,” complele Schedwle C, Parti 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organizaticn engage in lcbbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? if "Yes," compiete Schedule C, Parttt 4 X
§ Is the organization a section 501(c)4}, 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization thal receivas membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-187 if "Yes," complefe Schedule C, Part it . ... 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? if

“Ves,” complets Schedule D, Part 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easemert, including easements 1o preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? if *Yes,” complete Sehedule D, Partff 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? i “Yes,”

complete Schedule D, Part Il || 8 X

9 Did the crganization report an ameunt in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a
custodian for ameounis not listed in Part X; cr provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in guasi-endowments? f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V.
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VI, VI, 1X, or X, as applicable.

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107 if "Yes,"

complefe Schedule D, Part VI | 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, ne 167  "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl = 1p| X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for invesiments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complefe Schedule D, Part VIl 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for cther assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 167 if “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX' 11d X
Did the organization report an amount for other liabiliies In Part X, fine 25? if "Yes," complete Schedile D, Partx 1Me| X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a foctnote that addresses
the crganization's Tiability for uncertain 1ax posiions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complefe Schedule D, Patx |1 X

12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audied financial statements for the tax year? if “Yes,” complefe

Schedule D, Parts Xi and XIl 12a| X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? if
"Yes," and if the organizafion answered "Ng" io line 12a, then completing Scheduls D, Parls Xi and Xii is opfional 12h X
13  Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)()? if “Yes,” complete Schedve £ 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents cutside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 frem granimaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? if “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partsland iy 14b X
15  Did the organization report on Part [X, column {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to cr
for any foreign organization? if “Yes,” compiefe Schedute F, Parts lfancdtyvy 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance o or for foreign individuals? if “Yes,” complete Schedwle F, Farts iflapd iy~ 18 X
17 Did the organization report a tetal of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part i. See Instructons 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gress income and contributions on
Part VIl lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partll 18 | X
19 Did the organizaticn report more than $15,000 of gress income from gaming activities cn Part VI, line 9a?
ff ™Yes," complete Schedule G, Part 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilites? i “Yes," complete Schedule H 20a X
b If *Yes" to line 204, did the organization atiach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum? . 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or cther assisiance to any domestic crganization or
domestic govemment on Part IX, column (A), line 1? I “Yes, " complets Schedule |, Parts tand Il .. ... ... ... ....................... 21 X

DAA Form 990 2023
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Form 990 (2023) REGTONAT, ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36~3149827 Page 4
_PartIV. _ Checklist of Required Schedules {continued)
Yes | No
22 Did the organization reperd more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance te or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column {A), line 27 if "Yes,” complete Schedule /, Parts fand il . 22 X
23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
crganization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? if "Yes," complete Schedule J 23 X
24a Did the organization have & tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
§100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? i “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K, If ‘No,"go fo fine 26a 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? | 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
fo defease any tax-exempt bONAS? 24c
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 244
25a Section 501(c}{3), 501{c}(4), and 501{c)(29) organizations. Did the crganization engage in an excess hensfit
transastion with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes " complefe Schedule L, Parti 25a X
b s the organization aware that it engaged in an excess beneflt transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's pricr Forms 990 or 990-EZ7
If "Yas," complete Schedule L, PArt! 250 X
26 Did the organization report any amounrt on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payabies to any curent
or former officer, director, frustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, cr 35%
controlled entity or family member of eny of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partit 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any cument or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee therecf, a grant selection commitiee
member, or to a 36% controlled enfity {Including an employes thersof) or family member of any of these
persons? if “Yes,” complete Schedule L. Partllf |
28 Was the crganization a party tc a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule
L, Part 1V, instructicns for applicable fiing thresholds, conditicns, and exceptions).
a A current or former cfficer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? ff
"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV 283 X
b A family member of any individua! described in line 28a? If "Yes,” conplets Schedule L, Part/V 28b X
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals andfor organizations described in line 28a or 28b7 If
"Yes," complets Scheduls L, Part IV 28¢ X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedue M 20 | X
30  Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? i “Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 X
31 Did the organization liguidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease cperations? ¥ “Yes,” complefe Schedule N, Part! 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yas,”
compigte Schedule N. Part Il 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 if “Yes,” corplete Schedule R Part{ ... ... . . Bl | X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? if “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Fart if, ifi,
or iV, and Part Vi dine T 34 X
3%a Cid the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? .. ... ... 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organizafion recelve any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? ¥ “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, fine2 a5b
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? if “Yes,” compiete Scheduls R, Part V, line 2 36 X
37  Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its acfivilies through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is freated as a parinership for federal income tax purposes? if "Yes,” complets Schedufe R, Part VI 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanafions on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O, oo 38| X

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule G contains a response or note to any line inthis PartV .. ... ... ...

Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096, Enter -0- if not applicable. 1a | 10
Enter the number of Fonms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- i nct applicable b | 0
Cid the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to venders and

repcrtable gaming (cambling) Winnings 10 DIz WINE S T L i e e e e e e

Form 990 2az0)
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Form 990 (2023) REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Fags 5

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) Yes No
2a Enter the number of employess reported on Form W-3, Transmiital of Wage and Tax
Statements, flled for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this retum 2a | 53

b If at least one is reported on line 24, did the organization file all required federal empioyment tax retums'?
da Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of §1,000 or mere during te year?
b If*Yes has it filed a Form 890-T for this year? if “No” to fine 3b, provide an explanafion on Schedule G
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securilies account, or other financial account)?
b I Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

5a Was the organization a parly to @ prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any coniributions that were not tax deduciible as charitable confributions? . 6a X
b If *Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gils were not tax deductible?
7  Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organizaticn recelve a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and parlly for gocds

and services provided to the payor?

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible perscnal property for which it was

raquired to file Form 82827 7c X

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
@ Sponsoring organizations maintaining doner advised funds.

a Did the sponsoring organization make any faxable distributions under section 49667

10  Section 501(c}(7) organizations. Enter;
a |Initiaticn fees and capital contributions included on Part Viil, line 12

11 Section 501({c}{12) organizations. Enter:
a Cross income from members or shareholders .
b CGross income from other sources. (Do not net amcunts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or recsived from themy 11b
12a  Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts, Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?
b If"Yes,” enter the amount of tax-cxempt interest received or accrued during the year | 12b |
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a |s the organization licensed io issue qualificd health plans in more than one state?
Note: Sze the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter he amoeunt of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which

the organization is licensed 1o issue qualified heatth plans 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves onhand 13¢
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax vear? 14a X
b If*Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? i "No,” provids an explenafion on Schedwle © 14b

156 Is the organization subject 1o the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
axcaess parachute payment{s) during the year?
If “Yes,” see instruglions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16 s the organization an educational institution subject 1o the section 4568 excise tax on net investment income?
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

17 Section 501{c)(21} organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified or olher person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49837 .. . 17
If "Yes,” complete Form 6089.

Fom 990 (2028
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Form 990 (2023) REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 6
Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response fo fines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
resporise fo line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule Q. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any linein this Part VI . |§|
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a  Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the erd of the taxyear | 1a | 13
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the goveming body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar

' committee, explain on Schedue O.
3‘ b Enter the numbsr of voting members included on line 1a, above, who ara indepsndent b | 13
i 2 Did any officer, director, frustee, or key employes have a family relationship or a business relationship with
: any other officer, director, tustee, or key employee? 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or cther person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its goveming documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
§  Did the organization become aware duriing the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the crganization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power fo elect or appoint
one o more members of the govaming bedy? | 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved ta (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons cther than the goveming body? 7h X
8 Did the organizaticn contemporansously document the meefings held or writien actions undertaken during the year by the following: -
& The goveming BOCY? g8a | X
b Each commitiee with althority te act on behalf of the governing body? g8h | X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s malling address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedile O o i it g X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Infernal Revenue Cods.)
Yes [ No
10a Cid the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a| X
b If *Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures goveming the activifies of such chapters,
affilates, and branches to ensure their operaticns are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? .. ... ... ... ... 100 X
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its goveming body before fiing the form? X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. :
12a Did the organization have a wiitten conflict of interest policy? if ‘No,"goto line 13 12a | X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? | 12b| X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? if “Yes,”
describe on Scheduie O how this was done 126 | X
13 Did the crganization have a wiitten whistleblower policy? 13 | X
14 Did the crganization have a written document retention and destruction poliy? 14 | X
15  Did the procass for determining compensaticn of the fellowing persons include & review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the defiberation and decisicn?
a The organization's CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official
b Other officers or key employees of the organfzation
If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the procass on Schedule O, See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribufe assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? [T U O O TOTURRUUS 162 X
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a wiitten policy or procadure requiring the organization to evaluats iis

participation in joint venture arrangsments under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect 10 SUCh BITaNge NS Y L .ttt et e i i iiiiiiis
Section C. Disclosure '
17 List the states with which a copy of this Farm 990 is required 1o be filed R
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicatle), 990, and 990-T {section 501(c)
{3)s oniy) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Chack all that apply.
Own website Izl Another's website Upon request D Other {explain on Scheduie O)
19 Dascribe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest policy,
and fihancial statements available to the public during the 1ax year.
20  State the name, address, and telephcne number of the person who possassas Ihe organization's beoks and records.
XAVIER WHITFORD 202 MARKET STREET
ROCKFORD IL 61107 815-968-7467

DAA Fom 990 2023
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36-3149827 Page 7
. Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI . D
Section A, __Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for ali persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year,
e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
; compensation. Enter -0- in celurns (D), (E), and (F) if no compeneation was paid.
¢ List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definiticn of "key employee.”
e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key empioyes)
who recalvad reportable compensation {hox 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, andfor bax 1 of Sorm 1098-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
o List all of the crganization's former officers, key employees, and hghest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any relaled organizations.
o List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, mare than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, diractor, or trustee.

©
Al B Posilizn - =
Nams(allm tite A;t(are:ge g; nl.?r:I;::: c:egng;e [Slhsgu? Zen Repf:rt)abt\_e ocRepér:%;illi ] Esﬂma;e(:ll) amount
per‘ovt\:r:ek . Tﬂceiand 4 direclurf;m;:tee_)n CUT[&T?ESWH frglrE relatad ccn?pez[;‘:{jon
oy 2B EIFEES T s e crganiamien arc
refatad 25| S| [E 877 1089-NEC) 1098-NEC) related arganizations
organizations _‘E B, g %
below al b4
dolted line) g % %
MARLES HENDERSHOTT
O 2.00
BOD PRESIDENT 0.00 |x X 0 0 0
(2 LAFAKERIA VAUGHN
o] 2,00
BOD VP 0.00 |X X 0 0 0
(3)ANDREW HENDRICKEON
] 2200
BCOD TREASURER 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
“HJ.J. WETT
T A 2.00
BOD SECRETARY 0.00 | X X 0 0 0
(5)ALAN ZAIS
T I 2.00
PAST PRESIDENT 0.00 |X 0 0 0
(6} JUREA CRUDUP
TSR B 2.00
BOD 0.00 |X 0 0 0
(7’ MISTY DEHAVEN
R 2.00
BOD 0.00 [X 0 0 0
(B)INIKKI LYNCH
___________________________________________ 2.00
BOD 0.00 |X 0 0 0
(9)JOE MARSHALL
T 2,00
BQD 0.00 | X 0 0 0
(10) LAURA, MCANDREW
T 2.00
BOD 0.00 |X 0 0 0
(1M JOIE SCHROEDER
200
BOD 0.00 | X 0 0] 0

Fom 990 zozg)
DAA
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Form 980 (2023) REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 8
‘Part VIl: _ Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Gompensated Employees (confinusd)
: (C)
H Pasition
) (B) {do not check more than one (D) (E) (F}
: Narme and title Avarage box, unless person Is both an Reporlable Reportable Estimated amount
L hours officer and & directortrustes) compsnsation compensation of other
H per weak ST = frem the from related compsnsatlon
tlist any gl & 2] @ _c% d organization (W-3/ orgarizations (W-2/ from the
nousfor (331 E 1€ |5 |25 i 1039 MISC/ 1088.415C/ arganzaton and
related 25 i 3 §8 1095-NEC) 1098-NEG) related organizations
organizations - o =c<°b E|
below ar & 8| &
dotted line) ] ‘% §
(12) KIM SCHWEITZER
02 2.00
‘ BOD 0.00 |X 0 0 0
' {13} JESSICA ROLTZ
3 2,00
BQD 0.00 X 0 0 0
(14) JACKIE SUNDQUIST
a8 ] 40.00
EXEC. DIR. 0.00 X 120,701 0 7,975
a8
a8
07
O
(O
b Subkotal ... 120,701 7,975
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ... ... ...
d_Total (add lines tband e} ... oo oo 120,701 7,975

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportabie compensation from the organization

Yes | No

3 Did the organization iist any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? if “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual ..

4 Forany individual fisted on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater then $150,0007 If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual

5

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complets this table for your five highest compensated Independent coniractors that recsived more than $1 00,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the crganization's tax year.

A C
Name and b(us%ness address Descﬁplio{r?)of senvlces Com;;:erzsaﬁon

2 Total number of independent contractors {including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the orgarization 4]
DAA Fem 990 o3
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Form 990 (2023) REGIONAT. ACCESS & MOBILIZATION

363149827

Il Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII

A
Total revenue

B
Related or exempt
fundtion revenue

Amounttsj

, Gifts, Gran

Contributions
and Other Similar

=y
&

-7 O 0 O

Federated campaigns =~~~
Membership dues

Govermnment granks {eonfrbutions)
All other conlributions, gifts, grants,
and simllar amounts not Included above ... ...
Nencash contribudons included in

lings 1a-1f

47,42

215,859¢

2,408,403}

521,134

(C)
Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenus excluded
from tax undar
sections §12-514

m Service
evenue

ra

Prug}e
Qo - D 0L T

2a

Tofal. Add lines 2a-2f. ... ..........

Business Codaf:

800098

427,477

427,477

80G099

63,096

63,006

900099

18,000

18,000

508,573|

Other Revenue

8a

b Less: direct expenses

8a

10a

oo

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and

other similar amounts)

Royalties .. ....

54,525

54,525

() Real

Gross rents 6a

Less: rental expensas | Bb

Rental Inc. or (loss) ;14

Net rental incoms or (fos8) ... . i

Gross amount from

() Securities

(i) Cther

sales of assats
other than Inventory |74

48,915

Less: cost or ather
basls and sales exps. | 7h

Gain or (loss) 7c

Netgainor §0ss) ... ..

Gross income from fundraising events
(ot including 215,859

of contributions reporled on line
1c). See Part v, fne 18

8a

8b

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events

Gross income from gaming
gctivities. See Part IV, line 19
Less: direct expenses

9a

9b

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities . .

Gross sales of inventory, less
retums and allowances

10a

10b

Miscellaneous
Revente

11a

T oo T

Altotherrevenus ......... ....................... ...
Total Addiines 1a—1d ... ................................. ..

Business Cade

3,756,518

508,573

103,440

DAA

Form 990 (zo23)
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Form 990 (2023) REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 10
Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any ling in this Part IX
Do not include amounts rep orted on lines Eb’ 7b Total {e’:)pensas PrograsnB )service Manage(gl)em and Fund(::;)\sing
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance lo domestic organizations
and domeslic govemments. See Patt IV, lne 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, lne 22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign govermments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 130,294 109,421 13,096 7,777
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)B)
Cther salaries and wages 1,951,687 1,639,038 196,167 116,482
Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer cantributions) 20,889 17,543 2,099 1,247
9 Other employee benefits 201,224 168,989 20,226 12,009
10 Payroll taxes 160,371 134,681 16,119 9,571
11  Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b legal 760 760
¢ Accountng 28,700 28,700
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. {If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.} 81 ’ 142 16 r 113 64 N 704 325
12 Advertising and promotion 11,297 1,061 3,690 6,546
13 Office expenses 12,964 1,946 10,530 488
14  Information technology
15 Royales
16 Occupancy 96,875 84,624 7,687 4,564
7 Travel o 22,706 22,706
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 3,185 210 2,685 290
20 Interest . 6,784 5,697 682 405
21 Payments to affiliates e
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 90,387 75,907 9,085 5,395
23 Insuance 14,108 11,848 1,418 842
24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellanecus expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a GRANT SUPPORTING CONSUMER 120,757 120,757
b DUES / MEMBERSHIPS 22,401 18,924 2,646 831
¢ . EQUIPMENT 21,006 17,640 2,112 1,254
d BACKGROUND CHECKS . .. 350 350
e Al other expenses 7 7,950 7,145 505 300
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 though 24 3, 005 , 837 2 454,600 382 , 911 168 , 326
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaian and
fundraising sclicitation. Check here ﬁ if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958720) . . ... ......
DAA

Fom 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Paga 11
rt Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote toany lineinthis PartX ... ... . |_|
(A) B8
Beginning of yaar End of year
1 Cash—non-interestbearing 275,904 1 266,706
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 312,618 2 815,290
3 Pledges and grants receiveble, pet 345,859 3 419,316
4 Accounts receivable, net 35,635| 4 43,575
§ Loans and other receivables from any cument or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
conirolled enfity or family member of any of these persons
6 Loans and cther receivables from other disqualifed persons (as defined
% under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4858(c)H(3)B) &
@[ 7 Notes and loans recelvadle, net 7
<| 8 Inentores forsaleoruse 8
¢ Prepaid expenses and defered charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment; cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a & :
b Less: accumulated deprecaton 10b 934,878 2,021,601 10c 2,026,346
11 Investments—publicly traded securites . . o 11
12 Investments—other securites. See Part IV, line 9t 1,428,940] 12 1,702,640
13 Investments—program-refated. See Part IV, ine 1 13
4 iengile assets T 14 85,692
15 Cther assels. See Part IV, line1t 15
16 Total assets. Add fines 1 through 15 (mustequalline 38). .. .. ....oooooooiviiviiienr . 4,478,084/ 16 5,428,450
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 192,852] 17 240,254
18 Granis payable 18
19 Defored reverwe U 19 2,500
20
21
@9 22 Loans and other payables fo any cumrent or former officer, director,
B frustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial cortributor, or 35%
E controlled ertity or family member of any of these persons
—' |23 Secured mortgages and noles payable to umreleted third paries 273,476 23 256,444
24 Unsecured netes and loans payeble to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
pariies, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D
26  Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ... . . i e
" Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here @
a8 and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
.% 27 Net assets without donor restricions 3,160,076 27 3,919,116
M (28 Net assets with donor restictions 851,680 924,442
E Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here |_| =
- and complete lines 29 through 33,
O |29 Capital stock or trust principal, or cumentfunds 29
ﬁ 30 Paickin or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
< [31 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
% |32 Tolal net assets or fund balances 4,011,756 32 4,843,558
33 Total liabilities and net assefsffund balances ... e 4,478,084 32 5,428,450

DAA

Fom 990 {2023)
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_Forrﬁ 990 (2023) REGIONATL, ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 12
Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part X1 L . |_]
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIIi, column (A), dine 12y 1 3,756,518
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), fine 25) 2 3,005,837
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 remline 1 3 750,681
4 Nel assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 82, column (A) 4 4,011,756
5 Net unrealized geins (osses) on investments T 5 81,121
6 Donaled services and use of faclites ... ... 6
7 Investment @XPRNSES . 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes In nel assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule @y . 9

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of yaar. Combine lines 3 through & (must equal Part X, line

B2 column (BY 10 4,843,558
3 . Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or hote to any line in this Part XII

1 Acceurting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash @ Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from & prior year or checked “"Other,” explain on
Schedule ©.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial staternents for the year wers compilsd or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolicated basis, or both.
Separate basis |:| Censolidated basis l:l Both consolidated and separate basis
b Viers the organization's financiel stafements audited by an independent accountant?
I "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements fer the year were audited on a
separate basis, consclidated hasis, or both.
Izl Separate basis D Consclidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If "Yes” fo line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsiility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, expiain on

Schedule O.
3a As a resull of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.2.R. Part 200, Subparl F? ... ... 3a | X
b If "Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not underge the
fequired audit or audits, exptain why cn Schedule © and describe any steps takan to undergo such audits . . ......................... 3b [ X

Fom 990 zozs)
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;' SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support | o o, 15450047
.‘ (Form 930) Complete I the organization is a section 50t{c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a){1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2023
; Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Internel Raveruis Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form930 for instructions and the latest Information. _
Narme of the organization REGIONAT, ACCESS & MOBILIZATION Employer Identification number
: | PROJECT, INC. 36-3149827

; i _Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organizafion Is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one bax.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)ANI).

A school described in section 170(b}(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Scheduls E (Form 890),)

A hospltal or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1){A)jii).

A medical research erganization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170{b){1)}(A)(li). Enter the hospital's name,

lty, N SO |

An organizaticn operated fer the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b){1){A){v). (Complete Part IL.)

A federal, state, or local government or govemmental unit described in section 170{b)(1){(A}v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial parl of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public

descried in section 170(h){1}{A)v1). (Complete Part II.)

A community trust described in sectfon 170(b){1){A){vi). (Complete Part II.)

An agricultural reseasch organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)ix} operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a nonand-grant college of agriculiure (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

UNIVBISIY: e e e

An organization that nomally receives (1) mere than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership feas, and gross

raceipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; ard (2) ne mora than 33 1/3% of its

support from gross Investment income and unrelated business taxable income {less section 511 tax) from businessas

actjuired by the organization after June 30, 1675. See section 509{a}2). (Complele Fart II1.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a){1} or section 509(a}{2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 124 that describes the type of supporting organization and complels lines 12e, 121, and 12g.

a D Type . A supporting organizalion operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appeint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b I:l Type il. A supporting crganization supervised or controlled in connection with its supperted organization(s), by having

conirol or management of the supporting crganization vested in the same persons that controt or manage the supported

orgarization{s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

Type Bl functionally integrated. A supperting organization operated in connection with, and funclionally intagrated with,

its supported organization{s) (sae instructions). You must complste Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Type lil non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with ils supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The arganization generally must satisfy & distribution requirement and an attentiveness

requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

T [ I I O B I I

Ll I -

10

(3]

e Check this bex if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type I
funclionally infegrated, or Type Il non-unctionally inlegrated supporting crganization.
f. Eafer the number of supported organizalions - - - - - o e, S
g Provide the following informaticn about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported {ii} EN () Type of organization {Iv) Is the organization {v) Amount of monetary vl) Amount of
organizalion {describad on mes 1-10 Iisted in your goveming support (see othar support (see
above (see Instuctions)) document? instructions) instructiors)
Yes No
(A)
(B
)
(D)
(E)
Total Bl o :
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 590-EZ. Schedule A {Form 990) 2023

DAA
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Schedu'e A (Form 990) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170{b}(1)(A)iv) and 170(b}{1}A}(vi) -
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under

Part IIl. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1I1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) {a) 2019 {b) 2020 {c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e} 2023 {f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”) 2,014,254 2,218,184 2,204,246 2,447,706 3,192,824 12,077,214

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
1o or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organizaticn withoui charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through3 12,077,214
5§  The porlion of total contributions by
each person {cther than a
govemmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column ) 355,507
€ _ Public_support. Subtract ling & from line 4 .. 11,721,707
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year heginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 {e) 2023 {f} Tota
7 Amounis fromline 4 o 2,014,254 2,218,184 2,204,246 2,447,708 3,192,824 12,077,214
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on secwities loans,
rents, royafties, and income from
similar sources 13,806 22,618 27,060 29,412 54,525 147,418

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly camied on ... ... ... ...

10 Other income. Do nol include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets y{

BExplainin Part VLY . ...
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions)
T3  First § years. If the Form 990 is for the organizafion’s first, secend, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as & section 501(c)(3)

12,224,632
2,971,125

14 Public support percentage for 2023 {ine 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (D)} 14 95.86%

16 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il fine 14 15 95,71 %

16a 33 1/3% support test — 2023. If the organization did not check the box on lIne 13, and line 14 is 32 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2023. [f the organization did not check & box on line 13, 18a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization mests the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
OGANAON | |||\ oo o []
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here, Expiain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

ORNZENON | || [
18  Private foundation. If the crganization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 18b, 174, or 17b, check this box and see
SIICHONS || []

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Sehedule A (Form 890) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 3
art Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I.
If the organization fails fo qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In} (a) 2019 (k) 2020 () 2021 {d) 2022 (e} 2023 (f) Total
4 Glifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
recalved. (Do not Inchide any “unusual grants.”y

2 Gross receipts from acmissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilties
fumnished in anfﬂxcﬁvity that is related fo the
organization's tax-exempt purmose

3 Gross receipts from activiies that are not an
unrelated trade cr business under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

§ The value of services or facilities
fumnished by a govemmential unit to the
organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through &

7a  Ameunts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualfied persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than discualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

¢ Add lines 7a and 7b

8 Public support. (Subiract line 7¢ from
e 6) oo

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in} {a) 2019 (b} 2020 (¢) 2021 {c} 2022 {e) 2023 (f Total
9  Amounts from line 8

10a  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royaities, and incore from similar sources . ...
b Unrelated business taxable income (less

section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Addlnes 10aand0b

11 Net Income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business Is regularly camed on ...

12 Other income. Do not include gain or
legs from the sale of capital assets
{Explain in Part V1)

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10¢, 11,

and 12)
14  First § years. If the Form 990 Is for the crganization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501{c){3}

organization, check this box and StOR eI o i |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
18  Public support percentage for 2023 {ine 8, colurn (f, divided by line 13, column ¢y . . .~ 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Bart Il line 15 . o o 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Invesiment income percentage for 2023 (line 10g, column (f), divided by line 13, coumn ¢ . ... 17 %
18  Invesiment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Ilf, line t7 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests — 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line
17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 33 1/3% support tests -~ 2022, If the organization did not check a box on fine 14 or line 19z, and fine 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
fine 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The crganization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions . .......................... ) |:|
Scheduie A {Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 4
art:Iv.  Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 on Part |. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you chacked box 12¢, Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are alf of the organization’s supported crganizations listed by name in the organization’s govemning
documents? if “No,” describe in Part VI how the supporied organizations are designaled. if designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing refationship, expiain.

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determinaticn of status
under section 509(z)(1) or (2)? I "Yes,” explain in Part V! how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in seclion 509(a)(1) or (2).

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501{c)4), {5), or ()7 If "Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3¢ below.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organizafion qualified under secfion 501{c)(4), (5}, or (8) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” descrtbe in Part VI when and how the
organization mads the determinafion.

¢ Did the organizafion ensure that all support {0 such organizations was used exclusively for section 170{c)(2)(B)
purposes? if “Yes,” explain in Part VI what confrols the organization put in place fo ensure such uss.

4a Was any supporied organization not organized in the United States {*foreigh supported crganization™? ff
“Yes,” and If you checked box 12a or 12b in Part |, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

b Did the organization have ulfimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? if “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such contro! and discrafion
despite being controiled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS detenmination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or {2)? If “Yes,” expiain in Part VI what conlrols the organization used
fo ensure that all support to the forsign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
plrposes,

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? if “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and Sc below (if applicabls). Also, provide detail in Part V1, including (i} the names and EIN
numbers of the stpported organizafions added, substifufed, or removsd; (i} the reasons for each such action;
(i)} the authority undsr the organizafion's organizing document avithorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment lo the orgahizing document).

b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organizaticn's organizing decument?

¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

] Did the organizafion previde support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than {j) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by cne or more of its supperted organizations, or (i) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? i "Yes,” provide detail in Part V.

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment o a substaniial contributor
{as defined in section 4958(c)(3)}(C)), a family member of a subslantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? if "Yes,” complete Part | of Schedufe L (Form 980,

8  Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on fine
77 If "Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indiractly at any time during the tax year by cne or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 {other than foundation managers and organizaticns
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? if “Yes,” provide detail in Part V1.

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an Interest? if “Yes,” provide dstall in Part VI,

¢ Did a disgualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownershlp interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organizafion also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

10a Was the organization subject to the axcess busingss holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4843(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il nen-functionally integrated
supporling organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b befow.

b Did the organizaticn have any excess business holdings in the tax year? {Use Schedule C, Form 4720, fo
delermine whether the crganization had excess business holdings.)

Schedule A {Form 990) 2023
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Scheduls A (Form 590) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3145827 Page §
Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes No

11 Has the crganization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persens?
a A person wha directly or indirectly controls, efther alone or together with persons describad on lines 11b and
i1c below, the goveming body of a supported crganization? 11a
A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
A 35% confrolled entily of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? if "Yes” o fine 11a, 11h, or 11c,
provide detall in Part VI,
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1 Did the goveming bedy, members of the governing body, officers acting In their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or frustees at all imes during the tax year? If No,” describe in Part VI how the supported crganization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization'’s activities. If the erganization had more than one supporied
organization, describe hrow the powers fo appoint andor remove officers, directors, or frustees were allocated among the
supporied organizations and what condifions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax vear

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization{s) that operated,
sunervised. or confrolled the supporting organizafion.

Section C. Type Il Supporiing Organizations

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part Vi how control
or managerment of the supporfing organization was vested in the same persons that confrolied or managed
the supporied organization(s).

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1  Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fith month of the
organization’s tax year, (i} a wriltlen nolice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, {fi) a copy of the Form 980 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i) copies of the
orgarization’s goveming documents in effect on the date of nofification, tc the extant not previously provided?

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appoirted or elected by the supported
organization(s) cr (i) serving on the goveming body of a supported organization? f "No,” explain in Part VI
how the crganization mainfained a close and confiruous working relationship with the supperted organization(s).

3 By reason of the relationship described on fine 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax yaar? if “Yas,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Section E. Type i Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method thaf the organization used {o satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions),

a | | The crganization satisfied the Activifies Test. Complete line 2 bslow.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete fine 3 below.
c The oiganization supported a govemnmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a govermnmental entity (see instructions),

2 Activites Test Answer lines 2a and 2b below.
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these aciivities dirsctly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization detsrmined
that these activifles constituted substantially all of its activifies. ’
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute acfivities that, but for the crganization’s
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported crganization(s) would have been engaged in? #f
“Yes,” explain In Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organizafion's involvement
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part V1.
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policles, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? if “Yes,” describe in Part Vi the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 980) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 6
Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 |:| Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Tast as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (expiain in Part V). See
instructions. All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporling crganizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
{optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see Instructicns)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurmed for production cor collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions)

7 Other expenses (see instructions}

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 3

O |& jo [N [=

@ n b (G [N |-

e N1

{B) Curvent Year

Section B ~ Minimum Asset Amount (A} Prior Year .
{optional)

1 Aggregate fair markst value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax vear or gssets held for part of year):
a Average monthly value of securifies
b Average monthly cash balances
¢ Fair market value of cther non-exempt-use assets
d Total {add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)
¢ Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
{explain in defali in Part VI):
2 Acquisifion indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets
Subtract line 2 from line 1d.
Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).
Net valug of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)
Muliiply ling 5 by 0.035.
Recoveries of pricr-year distributions
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

(<3N ) V)

& |

~ |&h |;n

0|~ ||

Section C = Distributable Amount Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.88 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior vear (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Inceme tax imposed in prior year

_Distributable Amount. Sublract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to )

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 3
Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functicnally integrated Type Ill supporting organization
(see_Instructions).

L M E N e

@ an | (o |r =

-3
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‘Scha'c_iL_z\eA(Form 990) 2023 REGIONAL, ACCESS & MORILIZATION 36-3149827 Page T
ERartV. Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a){(3) Supporting Organizations {contintied)

Soction D — Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported crganizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounis paid to perform aclivity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Adminislrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supperted crganizations 3
4  Amounts paid tc acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts {prior IRS approval required—provide defails in Part Vi) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part V). See instructions. [
7  Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations fo which the organization is respensive 8
{provide defails in Part V). See instrugtions.
9  Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6 9
10 Line & amount divided by line 9 amount 10
)] (i) {iif)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see insiructions} Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2023 Amount for 2023

1 Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years pricr to 2023
{reasonable cause required-explain in Part V). See
instructions.

3 Excess distibutions camyover, if any, to 2023

From 2018 . e

From 2019 oo e

From 2020 . ... ..

From 2021 ... .

From 2022 . . i

Totai of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributicns of prior years

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

Carmryover from 2018 not applied (see Instructions)

Remainder, Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2023 from
Section I3, ling 7: 8

& Applied te underdistributions of pricr years
b Applied to 2023 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if
any. Subtract fines 3g and 4a from line 2, For result
greater than zero, explain in Part W See instructions.

8 Remaining underdistributions for Z2023. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, expfain in
Part VI, See instruclions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2024, Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8  Breakdown of ling 7:

Excessfrom2019 ... ..................

Excess from 2020 ... ...

Excess from 2021 ... .. 0\ ceeeiiiie

Excess from 2022 ., ... ........ ... ...,

Excess from 2023 ., .. ... ..

== ke |™me |ale |Tx

o |40 |T (e
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page B
. PartVI:  Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il line 10; Part I, line 17a or 17b; Part
I, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4¢, 5a, 8, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1¢, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and B. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMS No. 1645-0047
(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 123, or 12b,
Depariment of the Treasury Attach to Form 990,
Infemal Revenus Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form390 for instructions and the latest information.
Name of the organization . Employer ldentification number

REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION

PROJECT, INC,. 36-3149827

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts
Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6,

[+ R A

{a) Doner advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Did the organization inform all dohors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . D Yes D No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purpeses and not for the benefit of the donor or denor advisor, or for any other purpose

fening Impenmnissible private Benall? . st i D Yes I:' No

Conservation Easements
Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

2

o a0 T

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).
Preservation cf land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a histerically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic sfructure
Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution In the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax yesr. 2 |Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements L 2a

Total acreage resticted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included onire¢ 24~ 2¢

Number cf conservation easements included on line 2¢ acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

on a historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the

taxcyear

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the pericdic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it MOldS? |:| Yeos |:| No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation sasements during the year

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of seciion 170(h)(4){B)() ,

and section 170MMANBIIN? .. .. ....... ..ottt e e e L] ves [ ] no
in Part X, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance

sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the foolnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

organization’s accounting for conservalion easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

if the organization elected, as permitied under FASB ASC 958, not 1o report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assats held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xl the text of the focinote to its financial statements that describes these itens.

if the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amcunts relating to these items.

() Revesnue included on Form 290, Part VI, lina 1 $

{ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

2 [f the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating fo these items.
a Revenue induded on Form 98C, Part VIl line 1 S
b _Assels included in FOrM 900, Part X L . ittt iiiie e iaiiiieeiiiiiiiiiiiiii: b
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 980) 2023

REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 2

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

)

a
b

Puklic exhibition Lcan or exchange program

Cther

Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).
d
Scholarly research e
Preservation for future generations
Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
X

During the vear, did the crganization sclicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection?

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 8, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21,

1a

c
d
e
f

2a

Is the organization an agent, trustee, custedian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X?

Did the organization include an amount on Form 980, Part X, ling 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?
If 'Yes explain the arrangement in Part XIIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part X!l

|| No

Endowment Funds
Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

{a) Cument year (b} Prior year {6) Two years back {d) Thres ysars back (e} Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance . . 1,428,540 1,331,697 1,503,003 1,188,686 1,262,183
b Confrbutions = . . 120,000
¢ Net investment eamings, gains, and
losses 154,137 ©7,243 =-108,740 327,431 -8,717
Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities and
programs . 437 62,566 13,114 64,780
f Administrative expenses
g End of year balance 1,702,649 1,428,940 1,331,697 1,503,003 1,188,686
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the cument year end balance {ine 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasiendowment . 53.89 %
b Pemmarent endowment 46.11 =%
¢ Tem endowment =~ %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
crganization by: Yes | No
() Unrelated organizalions? . 3a(l) X
() Relaled ORANFZANONST | . e 3afi) X
b If “Yes® on line 3a(), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b

4 Describe in Part XlIl the intended uses of the crganization’s endowment funds.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Complete if the organization answered “Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of proparty (a) Cost or other basis {b) Cost or ather basls (¢} Accumulated (¢l) Book value
{Investment) {other) depreciation
1a Land .........................................
b Buldirgs 511,838 334,487 177,351
¢ Leasehold improvements 2,285,582 465,255 1,820,327
d Equipment 163,804 135,136 28,668
e Other ..o
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d} must equal Form 980, Part X, line 10g, column (B)) . . . . . . . ... ... 2,026,346

DAA
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Sche.dule D (Form 990) 2023 REGIONATL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION

36-3149827 Page 3

Part VIl  Investments — Other Securities

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of securily or category

(including name of security)

(b) Bock value

(c) Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial denvallves

(3) Other EQUITY MUTUAL FUNDS 616,591 | MARKET
_(A)  COMMUNITY FOUNDATION NORTHERN IL 552,028 MARKET
_(B) FIXED INCOME MUTUAL FUNDS 404,815| MARKET
~(C) FREEPORT COMMUNITY FOU'NDATION 81,369 MARKET
(D) DEKALB COUNTY COMMUNITY FOUN'DATION 29,563 MARKET
() BOONE COUNTY COMMUNITY FOUN'DATION 10,059 MARKET
(F) MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS 8,215| MARKET
LG
H
Total. (Co.fumn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B) 1,702,640

Part VIl Investments — Program Related

Complete if the arganization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 890, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment

(b) Baok value

(c) Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

()

(5)

(6)

()

(8)

(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 890, Part X, line 13, col. (B)) .

Part 1X Other Assets

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book value

()

(2)

(3)

{4)

(5)

(6)

)

(8)

)]

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B)) .

Part X Other Liabilities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book valus
(1) Federal income taxes
(2) LEASE LIABILITY 85 v 694
3
4
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
()]
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, col. (B)) 85,694

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of ihe footnote to the organlzanon ] f nancxal statements ihat reporls the

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIIl ...

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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ScheduIeD {Form 990) 2023  REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 4
: Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other supperl par audited financial statements 3,837,639
Ameunts included an tine 1 bui not on Form 990, Part VIIL, fine 12:

a Nel unrealized gains (osses) on investments ... . 2a

b Donated services and use of faciites ...~ 2b

¢ Recoveries of prioryear grants 2c

d Cther (Describe in Part Xill) 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 81,121
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1L 3,756,518
4 Amounis included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on lne 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line 70 4a

b Other (Dasaribe in Part XILy ab

¢ Addlinesdaanddb 4c

5 Total revenue. Add fnes 3 and dc. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, fine 12.) .. 5 3,756,518

- Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, ling 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited finandial statements 3,005,837
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part 1X, line 25

a Donated services and use of facilies ... ... ... 2a

b Prior year adjustments 2b

¢ Otherlosses . 2

d Other (Describe in Part XUy | o 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d |

3 Subtvact ne 2e from line 1 3,005,837
4 Amounts inciuded on Form 980, Part [X, line 25, bui nct on line 1;

a Investment expenses nef included on Form 890, Part VI, Tne Vo 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIL) .. ab

¢ Addlinesdaanddb

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Parf [ line 18] . o iiiii e 3,005,837

Xlll: Supplemental Information
Prowde Ihe descriptions required for Part 11, lines 3, 5, and ; Part Ill, fines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part X|l, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.
PART V, LINE 4 - INTENDED USES FOR ENDOWMENT FUNDS

PART X - FIN 48 FOOTNOTE
FRANCHISE TAXES. THEREFORE, mH_EBE._.Is...N.Q.._PBQV_I_SI_QN.,_EQB._..INQQME:__TA:@S.__I_N..T%I.E.._

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 5
‘Part XIll: Supplemental Information (continued)

THERE ARE NO UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023, RAMP

. ILLINOIS. TAX REGULATIONS WITHIN EACH JURISDICTION ARE SUBJECT TO THE

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities OMB No. 1546-0047

(Form 990) o B gamization ontored moro than $15,608 o Form 850.5, o ga. 12 ©7 1Fhe 2023

Department of he Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Intemal Revenuz Sence Go to www.irs.gov/Form934 for instructions and the latest information. Ho!

Nams of the crganization REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILI ZA.TION Employer identification number
PROJECT, INC. 36-3149827

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, ling 17.
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a D Mail solicitations ;] D Solicitation of non-govemment granis
b D Intemmet and email solicitations f I:l Soficitation of govemment grants
c D Phene solicitations g |:| Special fundraising events

d |:| In-person sclicitations

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreerment with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V1)) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? |:| Yes I:l No
b If "Yes,” list the 10 highest paid Individuals or entilies (fundraisers) pursuant fo agreements under which the furdraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(i} Dl func- {¥) Amaunt paid to [vi} Amount pald 1o
. . ralser have . . _
{i) Name and address of individual . . custody or (¥} Gross receipts (or retained by) (or retaines! by)
or enlly (fundralser) {ify Activity control of from activity fundraiser listed In orgarization
contributions? col. )
Yas| No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Ot et

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from
registration or licensing.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990) 2023
DAA
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Schedule G {Fonm 980) 2023

REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION

36-3149827

Page 2

Fundraising Events, Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more

than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income an Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List evenis with

gross receipts

reater than $5,000.

() Event #1 (b} Event #2 (c) Cther events
{tl) Total events
ANNUAL APPEAT ANNUAT, LUNCHEON {add col. (a} through
® (event type) {event typa) {total rumber) col. [€)}
=3
c
5 1 Gross receipts 56,537 43,302 97,793 197,632
2 Less: Confribufions 56,537 37,0587 69,128 162,722
3 Gross Income (line 1 minus
e 2, . oo 6,245 28,665 34,910
4 Cash prizes
5 Noncash prizes 4,934 4,934
B | 6 Rentfaciity costs | 2,125 4,438 6,563
=
()
2| 7 Food and beverages 6,062 699 6,761
B
% 8 Entertainment 75 75
9 Other direct expenses 5,681 3,232 6,452 15,365
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9incolurn ¢y 33,698
11Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from ling 3, column (d) .. ..o e 1 ’ 212

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line Ba.

@ . {b) Pull tabsfinstant . ‘ {dy Total gaming {add
E (a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo (e} Olhar gaming col. {a) through col {c)}
[V

1 Gross revenue.. ... ..
@ | 2 Cash prizes
@ | & MRS
dns
[<H}
S‘ 3 Noncash prizes
8
= 4 Rentffacility costs

5 Other direct expenses

| Yes ... % | Yes .. %oy Yes .
6 Volunteer labor = No No No

10a Were any of ihe organizafion's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?

b If “Yes," explain:

DAA

Schedule G (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule G (Form 990) 2023 REGTIONAT, ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-3149827 Page 3
11 Does the organization conduct gaming activiies with nonmembers? |:| Yes |:|No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity
formed to administer charitable gaming? ... ... ... ... . ... . A S R B S S A T I:] Yes D No
13  Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization's facity 13a %
b Anoutside faciity 13b %
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and
records:
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming
b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party S
¢ If"Yes,” enter name and address of the third party:
16  Gaming manager information:
Gaming manager compensaton §
Description of services provided
|:| Director/officer D Employee |:| Independent contractor
17 Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
refain the state gaming license? D Yes |:] No
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt orgamzatlons or
spent in the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year $
Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (i) and (v); and

Part lIl, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information.

See instructions.

DAA
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RAMP 12/19/2024 9:26 AM

SCHEDULE M

(Form 990) Noncash Contributions

Complete if the organizations answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.

Attach to Form 990.
Department of the Treasury

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Open To Public

bl BaVere Strae Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
PROJECT, INC. 36-3149827

Part | Types of Property

(a) (b) @ (d)
Check if Number of contributions or Nongashi: coninbition Method of determining
amounts reported on
applicable items contributed Form 990, Part VIl line 1g noncash contribution amounts
1 At—Works ofart
2  At—Historical treasures
3 At—Fractional interests
4  Books and publications
5  Clothing and household
goods ..
6 Cars and other vehicles
7 Boats and planes
8 Intellectual property
9  Securiies — Publicly traded
10  Securities — Closely held stock
11 Securities — Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests
12 Securties —Miscellaneous
13 Qualified conservation
contribution — Historic
structures
14  Qualified conservation
contributon — Cther
15  Real estate —Residential
16  Real estate —Commercial
17  Real estate—OCther
18  Collectibes
19 Food inventory
20 Drugs and medical supplies
21 Taxidermy
22 Historical artifacts
23  GScientific specimens
24  Archeological artifacts
25  Other ( SILENT AUCTION ) X 1 46,452 FMV
26 OCther ( - ) )
27 Ofer ()
28  Cther ( )
29  Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part V, Donee Acknowledgement 29
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through
28, that it must hold for at least 3 years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be
used for exempt purposes for the entire holding pefod? 30a X
b If “Yes,” describe the arrangement in Part 1.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance palicy that requires the review of any nonstandard
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
b If “Yes,” describe in Part II.
33  Ifthe organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,
describe in Part II.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 930.

DAA
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Schedule M (Form 980) 2023 REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION 36-31495827 Page 2
% Supplemental ' information. Provide the information required by Part |, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether

the organization is reporting in Part |, column (b}, the number of contributions, the number of items received,

or a combination of both, Alse complete this part for any additional information,

Schedule M {Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE © Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ |—oMB No. 1645 c0¢7
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2023
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Deparlment of the Treasury ) Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
Intemal Revorue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. nspe
Name of the organization REGETOMNAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION Emptoyer identification number
PROJECT, INC. 36-3149827

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ, Schedule O (Form 990) 2023
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36-3149827 lllinois Statements -

FYE: 6/30/2024

Statgmeni 1 - Form AG990-IL, Page 2, Line 11 - Financial Institutions where Organization
Maintains Three Largest Accounts

Description

MIDLAND STATES BANK: 1700 N. ALPINE ROAD, ROCKFORD, IL 61107
SAVANT CAPITAT: 190 BUCKLEY DRIVE, ROCKFCRD, IIL 61107
FLOURISH: 2 BARK AVE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YCRK, NY 10016
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BENNING GROUP, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.BenningGroup.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Regional Access & Mobilization Project, Inc.
Rockford, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Regional Access & Mobilization
Project, Inc. (RAMP) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024
and 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respeots, the financial position of Regional Access & Mobilization Project, Inc. as of June 30,
2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of RAMP and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

50 W. Douglas Street, Suite 300 6815 Weaver Road, Suite 300 1809 10t Street
Freepott, Illinois 61032 Rockford, Illinois 61114 Monree, Wisconsin 53566
Phone (815) 235-3157 Phone (315) 316-2375 Phone (608) 325-5035

Fax (815) 235-3158 Fax (815) 316-2389 Fax (608) 328-2843



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregated, that raise substantial doubt about RAMP’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guaranice that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of RAMP’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about RAMP’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audits wete conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 11, 2024, on our consideration of RAMP’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in consideting RAMP’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

gﬂ-z‘ﬁt’ﬁf caat./l, Lo

Rockford, Illinois
December 11, 2024



REGIONAIL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2024 and 2023
Assets 2024 2023
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,081,996 588,522
Accounts receivable:
Department of Rehabilitation Services 409,810 328,132
Other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$518 and $528 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 43,575 35,635
Pledges receivable — current portion 9,506 17,727
Prepaid expenses 68,883 57,527
Total current asscts 1,613,770 1,027,543
Investments — held for endowment purposes 1,702,640 1,428,940
Right-of-use asset — operating lease, net 85,694 -
Property and equipment, net 2,026,346 2,021,601

$ 5,428,450 4,478,084

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabifities:

Accounts payable 56,213 18,621
Accrued expenses 184,041 174,231
Unearned revenue 2,500 —
Lease liability, current portion 17,786 -
Mortgage note payable, current portion 17,737 17,308
Total current liabilities 278,277 210,160
Long-term liabilities:
Lease liability, less current portion 67,908 -
Mortgage note payable, less current portion 238,707 256,168
Total liabilities 584,892 466,328
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 3,919,116 3,160,076
With donor restrictions 924,442 851,680
Total net-assets : 4,843,558 4,011,756
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,428,450 4,478,084

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets $ 831,802 263,734
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 90,387 90,315
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 278
Realized and unrealized gains on investments (130,002) (71,840)
Increase (decrease) in cash flow due to changes in;
Accounts receivable (89,618) (82,974)
Pledges receivable 8,221 18,957
Prepaid expenses (11,356) (8,927)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 47,402 (35,819)
Deferred revenue 2,500 -
Net cash provided by operating activities 749,336 173,724
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 648
Purchase of property and equipment (95,132) (63,149)
Purchase of investments (145,536) (25,403)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,838 ~
Net cash used in investing activities (238,830) (87,904)
Cash flows from financing activities — _
Payments on long term debt (17,032) _ (16,882)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 493,474 68,938
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 588,522 519,584
End of year $  1,081,99 588,522

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash payments for interest $ 6,784 7,049

See accompanying notes to financial statements



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

(1) Nature of the Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Nature of Business

Regional Access & Mobilization Project, Inc. (RAMP) is a nonprofit corporation
organized to enable persons with disabilities living in the Northern Illinois area to
gain effective control over and direction of their own lives.

(b} Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to RAMP that
is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are
reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire
in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with restrictions. When restricted
contributions expire, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

(c) Cash and Cash Fquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand and on deposit in demand accounts
at financial institutions. RAMP maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at
times, may exceed federally insured limits. RAMP was in excess of federal deposit
insurance coverage at June 30, 2024 by approximately $21,000. RAMP believes that
the risk related to this concentration is minimal.

(d) Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment is stated at cost. RAMP capitalizes expenditures
over $500 for building, improvements and equipment; donated property is capitalized
at fair market value when received. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the asscts: Building and improvements — 39
years; furniture and equipment — 3 to 7 years.

(e) Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials are reflected as contributions at their estimated value at the date of
receipt included in special events, net on the Statement of Activities. Donated
services are recognized as revenue if the services create or enhance non-financial
assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, RAMP uses the
services of volunteers to assist its staff. No amounts have been reflected in the



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

financial statements for these donated services, as they do not meet the requirements
stated above.

f) Income Taxes

RAMP is a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) as other than a private foundation and is
therefore not subject to federal and state income or franchise taxes. Therefore, there is
no provision for income taxes in the financial statements.

Management of RAMP has evaluated uncertain tax positions and has determined
there are no uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, RAMP files its
information returns (Form 990 series) in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the office of
the attorney general for the State of Illinois. Tax regulations within each jurisdiction
are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations require
significant judgment to apply.

(g) Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

Investment securities are reported at fair value, generally based upon quoted market
prices, Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statements of
activities. Investment income and gains and losses on investments are reported as
increases or decreases in net assets without restrictions unless a donor or law restricts
their use. Investments are exposed to potential risks including interest rate risk, credit
risk and overall market volatility. Accordingly, it is reasonably possible that changes
in the value of investments will occur in the near term and such changes could be
material in amount.

(h) Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.
On an ongoing basis, management evaluates the estimates and assumptions based on
new information. Management believes that the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable in the circumstances; however, actual results could differ from those
estimates.



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(i) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

RAMP is required to repott information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets
without donor restrictions.

Contributions received are recorded as with or without donor restrictions depending
on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.

Net assets restricted with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2024 represent time
restrictions for receivables that have not been collected, contributions that are
restricted for the program services, and permanent restrictions for the endowment
fund.

(i) Expense Allocation

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are atiributed to
more than one program service or suppotting activity. Therefore, expenses require
allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Payroll and payroll
related expenses are based on time allocation of employees. Occupancy related
expenses (i.e., rent, building and grounds, insurance, repairs, and utilities) are based
on a square footage allocation.

(k) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023 financial statements to conform
with the 2024 presentation.

() Leases

During fiscal year 2024, RAMP. implemented Accounting Standards Updaie (ASU}
No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) using the effective date method. Right-of-use
(ROU) assets and leasc liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date or
the effective date, July 1, 2022, based on the estimated present value of the remaining
fixed lease payments over the lease term. In determining the estimated present value
of lease payments, RAMP discounts the fixed lease payments using the rate implicit
in the agreement or, if the implicit rate is not known, using the risk free discount rate.
RAMP used the risk free discount rate for June 30, 2024,

For operating leases, lease expense is recognized over the expected lease term and
classified as a program service or supporting services expense bascd on the nature of
the underlying leased asset. For finance leases, the ROU asset is recognized over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset, consistent with the RAMP’s normal depreciation
policy, or the lease term, and is classified as a program service or supporting services
expense, based on the nature and use of the underlying leased asset. RAMP does not
have any finance leases as of June 30, 2024,

10



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(2) Pledges Receivable

A summary of pledges receivable is as follows at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Capital campaign $ - 10,000
Contributions 1,506 1,477
United Ways 8,000 6,250
9,506 17,727
Less current portion (9,5006) (17,727)

$

RAMP receives funding from a number of United Way agencies in its operating area
including Northwest Illinois, Boone County, Rock River Valley, Genoa Kingston, and
Kishwaukee.

(3) Investments — Held for Endowment Purposes

Investment securities — held for endowment purposes, which are recorded at quoted
market values, are comprised of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Market Value Market Value

2024 2023

Cash and money market finds $ 8,215 9,226
Equity mutual funds 7 616,591 539,683
Fixed income investments _ 404,815 381,880
Held at community foundations (CF):

CF of Northern Illinois 552,028 387,349

DeKalb County CF 29,563 26,859

Boone County CF 10,059 9,251

Freeport CF 81,369 74,692

$ 1,702,640 1,428,940

11



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

The components of investment income for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were:

2024 2023
Dividends $ 38,018 37,956
Realized and unrealized gains 130,002 71,840
Management fees (14,323) (12,553)
$ 153,697 97,243

(4) Property and Lquipment

A summary of property and equipment at June 30, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

2024 2023
Building $ 511,838 511,838
Building improvements 2,285,582 2,214,784
Furniture and equipment 163,804 139,470
2,961,224 2,866,092
Less accumulated depreciation 934,878 844,491

$ 2,026,346 2,021,601

(5) Leases

RAMP has one operating lease for office space. RAMP entered into a new lease for
office space in January 2024. The lease expires in December 2028. The lease does not
require RAMP to pay for utilities and other costs associated with the tenant space. Rent
cxpense relating to this lease totaled $10,350 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

During fiscal year ending 2023, RAMP entered into a new copier maintenance agreement
for its copiers with a different service provider. The lease term is for 60 months with a
monthly base payment of $373 beginning July 2022 and ending in June 2027.

12



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Minimum rental payments under these lease agreements and maintenance agreements
through expiration are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2025 $ 25,171
2026 25,171
2027 22,936
2028 20,700
2029 10,350

The total rental expense for fiscal years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $20,400 and
$20,100, respectively.

Lease-related assets and liabilities are as follows for the yeér ended June 3(:

Classification on Statement of Financial Position 2024
Assets;
Right of'use asset $ 94,335
Accumulated amortization (8,641}
Right of use asset, net $ 85,694
Liabilities:
Lease liability, current portion $ 17,786
Lease liability, long term 67,908
Total lease liability $ 85,694

Supplemental lease related information follows:

2024
Weighted average remaining lease term —
Office lease 4.5 years
Weighted average discount rate —
Office lease 3.84%

13



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year ending
June 30, Total
2025 $ 20,700
2026 20,700
2027 20,700
2028 20,700
2029 10,350
Total $ 93,150

(6) Line of Credit and Long-Term Debt

RAMP has a line of credit for $525,000 that matured on December 7, 2024 with an
interest rate of prime per annum (8.50% at June 30, 2024). This line of credit is in the
process of being renewed. This line is secured by a pledge agreement granting a security
interest in the endowment assets and all other assets of RAMP. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2024 or 2023.

To fund the remaining costs of the building remodel project, RAMP entered into a note
payable with a local bank on December 10, 2020 for $375,000 with a variable interest
rate based on the 5 Year LIBOR Swap index plus a 2% margin (2.451% as of June 30,
2024). The loan is secured by a mortgage on the building at 202 Market St., Rockford, IL
and a commercial security agreement. The loan matures on December 10, 2025 and
includes monthly principal and interest payments of $1,985 beginning on January 10,
2021. The loan balance as of June 30, 2024 was $256,444.

The following is a maturity schedule of the note payable:

Year ending
June 30, Amount
2025 $ 17,737
2026 238,707

$ 256,444

Interest paid on the above note payable for June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 was $6,783
and $7,049, respectively. '

14



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

{7) Endowment Net Assets

RAMP’s endowment consists of both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds
designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds,
including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, the Board of Directors of RAMP has
interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA) as
requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds. As a result of this interpretation, RAMP classifies as
net assets restricted for permanent endowment purchases as (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (¢) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricied
endowment fund that is not classified in net asset with donor restrictions — permanent
endowment is classified as net assets without donor restrictions — board designated
endowment until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by RAMP in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA.

In accordance with SPMIFA, RAMP considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the
duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted
endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation
and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of
investments, (6) other resources of RAMP, and (7) RAMP’s investment policies.

RAMP has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt
to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while
seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets over the long-term,
The endowment assets are invested in accordance with predetermined asset allocation
and performance benchmarks. To satisfy its long-term tate-of-return objectives, RAMP
relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both
capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).
RAMP’s spending policy provides that only the income from endowments may be used
for the general purposes of RAMP, with RAMP withdrawing current income as it is
needed only if invested funds are over $1,000,000.

RAMP has endowment accounts in the Community Foundations of Northern Illinois,
Freeport, DeKalb and Belvidere as part of their campaign to reach $1,000,000 in
investment assets held for endowment purposes.

15



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

The endowment composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Without Donor ~ With Donor 2024
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment funds:
Donor restricted $ - 785,099 785,099
Board designated 917,541 — 917,541
$ 917,541 785,099 1,702,640

The endowment composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Without Donor ~ With Donor 2023
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment funds:
Donor restricted $ — 785,099 785,099
Board designated 643,841 - 643,841
$ 643,841 785,099 1,428,940

The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2024 arc as follows:

Without Donor ~ With Donor 2024
Resirictions Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year $ 643,841 785,099 1,428,940
Investment return —
investment gain 154,137 - 154,137
Withdrawals 437 - 437)
Contributions 120,000 - 120,000
Endowment net assets,
end of year $ 917,541 785,099 1,702,640

16



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Without Donor ~ With Donor 2023
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year $ 546,598 785,099 1,331,697
Invesiment return —
investment loss 97,243 - 97,243
Withdrawals — - —~
Endowment net assets,
end of'year $ 643,841 785,099 1,428,940

(8) Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions and With Donor Restrictions

Components of net assets without donor restrictions as of June 30, 2024 and 2023
respectively, are as follows:

Without donor restrictions:

2024 2023
Undesignated $ 979,877 494,634
Investment in property and equipment 2,026,346 2,021,601
Board designated — endowment 917,541 643,841

$ 3,923,764 3,160,076

17



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Components of net assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2024 and 2023
respectively, are as follows:

2024 2023
Restricted as to time:
Special events $ 57,707 32,552
United Way 9,250 6,250
Restricted as to purpose:
Employment services — 14,800
Project Search 357 —
Fast Track 45,562 1,500
Scholarships 1,996 1,857
Employment project 18,965 -
TBI recreation - 8,822
First responder training 4,950 -
Equipment 556 -
Conference art — 800
Endowment fund 785,099 785,099
$ 924,442 851,680

(9) Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

The following table reflects RAMP’s financial assets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,
reduced by amounts that ate not available to meet general expenditures within one year of
the statement of financial position date because of contractual or donor restrictions.

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,081,996 588,522
Accounts receivable 453,385 363,767
Pledges receivable — current portion 9,506 17,727
Investments, at fair value 1,702,640 1,428,940

Total financial assets 3,247,527 2,398,956
Board designated — endowments (917,541) (643,841)
Donor restricted for time and

program requirements ' (924,442) (851,680)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs '
for general expenditures within one year $ 1,405,544 903,435

18



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

{10) Major Source of Revenue

Approximately 24 and 30 percent of RAMP's revenue without donor restrictions was
received from the State of Illinois in fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively. A
significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, could have a
significant effect on RAMP's programs and activities,

(11) Special Events — Direct Expenses

During fiscal years 2024 and 2023 RAMP held several special fund-raising events with
gross revenue of $250,770 and $256,857 and direct expenses of $83,230 and $111,462,
respectively. Donated materials of $46,452 and $35,825 are include in the gross revenue
and direct expense totals. The net proceeds from these events were $167,540 and
$145,395, respectively.

(12) Risks and Uncertainties

Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and
credit, Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the level
of uncertainty related to changes in the value of investment securities, it is at least
reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term would be material to the
amounts reported in the statements of activities.

(13) Retirement Plan

RAMP maintains a 401(k) retirement plan which provides for retirement benefits based
on the actual value of contributions and accumulated earnings at the time of retirement.
Employees must be 18 years of age and have completed three months of service before
they become eligible to participate, Employees attain a 20 percent vested interest in any
employer matching or other contributions to the plan after two years of employment,
increasing 20 percent each year over the following four years of employment. The
amount of RAMP contributions to the plan, which are discretionary, was one percent of
eligible employees’ compensation. RAMP’s contributions for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023 were $23,316 and $20,425, respectively.

19



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(14) Fair Value Measurements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board guidance establishes a framework for
measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements),

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that RAMP has the
ability to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include: quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices . for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability,
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means. If the asset or
liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be
observable for substantialty the full-term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant
to the fair value measurement.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value:

Investments in registered investment companies (money market and mutual funds) —
Shares of mutual funds are valued at net asset value of shares held by RAMP at year
end.

Interest in investments under management with community foundations — interest in
investments under management with community foundations are valued based upon
the fair value of the underlying assets as reported to RAMP by each community
foundation. :

20
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Notes to Financial Statements

The following tables set forth the level, within the fair value hierarchy, of RAMP’s assets
at fair value as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Money market funds $
Equity mutual funds

Fixed income mutval funds

Interest in investments under

management with community
foundations
$
Money market finds $
Equity mutual funds

Fixed income mutual fimds

Interest in investments under
management with community
foundations '

$

Assets at Fair Valve as of June 30, 2024

Level ] Level 2 Level3 Total
8,215 - - 8,215
616,591 - - 616,591
404,815 - - 404,815
- - 673,019 673,019
1,029,621 - 673,019 1,702,640

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2023

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
9,226 - - 9,226
539,683 - - 539,683
381,880 - - 381,880
- - 498,151 498,151
930,789 - 498.151 1,428,940

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of
Level 3 investments for years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Balance at beginning of year  $

Withdrawals
Contributions
Investment income

Unrealized gain, net loss

Fees
Balance at end of year

2024 2023

498,151 459,274
- 63)

120,000 —
51,717 34,927
7,791 7,817
(4,640) (3,804)
$ 673,019 498,151

21
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Notes to Financial Statements

(15) Related Party Transactions
RAMP did not have any related party transactions in fiscal years 2024 and 2023.

(16) Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but
before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. These events and
transactions either provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of
the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial
statements (that is, recognized subsequent events), or provide evidence about conditions
that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after that date (that is, non-
recognized subsequent events).

RAMP has evaluated subsequent events through December 11, 2024, which was the date
that these financial statements were available for issuance. In fiscal year 2023, RAMP
determined it qualified for and filed for refunds totaling $852,735 in Employee Retention
Tax Credits (ERTC) relating to payroll expenses incurred in 2020 and 2021. Of this
amount, $489,986 and $199,135 was received in fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively
and is included in other fees and income in the accompanying statement of activities for
2024 and 2023. Certain federal and state granting agencies have since clarified that
payroll expenses reimbursed through the ERTC cannot also be used in reporting grant
expenditures, RAMP performed an analysis to determine if any of the ERTC funds
received or receivable will be required to be returned to granting agencies. The analysis
yielded a potential repayment of $230,000. Due to the ERTC moratorium, no additional
funds have been received. Repayment, if any, would be recognized against ERTC funds
received subsequent to June 30, 2024,

22



REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC,
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal Pass Through
Federal Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program ot Cluster Title: Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Centers for Independent Living (CIL) 2211ILILCL-00
—Fed Part C 93.432 2311ILIL.CL-00 $ 178,674
Centers for [ndependent Living (CIL) 2216ILILCL-00
— Federal Freeport 03.432 2316ILILCL-00 51,088
Public Health Workforce Funding for Part C CILs 93.432 22111LILPH 55,775
Public Health Workforce Funding for Part C CILs
~ Stephenson 93.432 22161LILPH 58,325
Total 93.432 44 343,862
U.S. Department of Human Services:
Passed through from Illineis Department
of Health & Human Services;
Independent Living Grant — State SSI 93.369 46CCDO0369 247,984
Independent Living Grant — Fed Part B 93.369 46CCD0O0369 27,934
Total 93,369 wk o 275918
Disability Innovation Fund
Carcer Pathways 84.421 46CCDO3722 52,748
Total 84.421 52,748
Total U.S. Department of Healih and Human Services 328,666
U.S. Department of Justice —
Passed through from Office on Violence Against Women
—Education, Training and Enhanced Services to End
Violence Against Women with Disabililies 16.529 2020-FW-AX-K002 99,492
Social Security Administration —
Social Securily - Work Incentives Planning &
Assistance Program — Ticket-to-Work 96.008 8800-12-E2713 102,806
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 874,826

#*  Major program

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Note A — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes
the federal grant activity of Regional Access & Mobilization Project, Inc. (RAMP) and
is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Aundit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of the basic financial statements.

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not aliowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or
credits made in the normal course of operations to amounts reported as expenditures in
prior years. RAMP did not elect to include the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Note C — Other Matters

RAMP received no federal non-cash assistance during the year ended June 30, 2024.
Additionally, the organization had no insurance, loans or loan guarantees related to
federal funds. RAMP had no sub-recipients during the year ended June 30, 2024.
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BENNING GROUP, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.BenningGroup.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Regional Access & Mobilization, Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Regional Access & Mobilization Inc. (RAMP) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2024 and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 11, 2024,

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered RAMP’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of RAMP’s internal control, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of RAMP’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencics, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance,

50 W, Douglas Street, Suite 300 6815 Weaver Road, Suite 300 1809 10th Street
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Our consideration of infernal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and thercfore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. As described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a
significant deficiency (see 2024-01).

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether RAMP’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

RAMP’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards require the auditor to perform limited procedures on
RAMP’s response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. RAMP’s response was not subjected to the other
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of RAMP’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Benning Graup, L

Rockford, Tilinois
December 11, 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
Regional Access & Mobilization Project, Inc,:

Report on Compliance for Major Federal Programs

Opinion on Major Federal Programs

We have audited Regional Access & Mobilization Project, Inc.’s (RAMP) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on RAMP’s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2024. RAMP’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, RAMP -complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United. States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code. of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of RAMP and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for cach major federal program. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination
of RAMP’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance
with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to RAMP’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error,
and express an opinion on RAMP’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about RAMP’s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Audifing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding RAMP’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of RAMP’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
RAMP’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis, A material weakness
in internal conlrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is 2 reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Eeﬁf;“:ﬁf caaaﬁ, e

Rockford, Tllinois
December 11, 2024
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REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financigl Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X_yes no
Considered to be material weaknesses? yes X 1o
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
Significant deficiency(ics) identified? yes X_no
Considered to be material weaknesses? yes X o
Type of auditot’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance? yes X ho
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Amount
93.432 Centers for Independent Living $ 343,862
93.369 Independent Living Program $275,918
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
Between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X__yes no
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REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC,

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

2024-01 — Internal Control and Preparation of Financial Statements

Condition/Criteria — Management has chosen to rely on accounting skills, knowledge and
experience of its auditors to apply adequate procedures to the financial statements and notes to
ensure that RAMP’s financial statements and related notes are in material compliance with
accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effects — Auditors use RAMP’s trial balance and other financial information to prepare U.S.
GAAP based financial statements and note disclosures for which management is responsible.

Cause - Like many small not-for-profit entitics, RAMP did not have an accountant on staff
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 with experience in preparing U.S. GAAP based
financial statements and note disclosures,

Recommendation — Due to the size of RAMP, we do not recommend any changes at this
time. It is important to note that when this situation exists, the fair presentation of the
financial statements remains management’s responsibility and therefore management review
of the financial statements is an important part of the internal control process.

Management response — RAMP’s management plans to continue to review and take
responsibility for the U.S. GAAP based financial statements and note disclosures prior to the
finalizing of the auditor’s report,

Section IIT — Prior Year Financial Statement Findings

Same as 2024-01 above — Internal Control and Preparation of Financial Statements

Section 1V — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted

Section V — Prior Year Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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REGIONAL ACCESS & MOBILIZATION PROJECT, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Section V1 — Other Issues

A management letter was issued for the year ended June 30, 2024 identifying no
material weaknesses.

Submitted by:

BENNING GROUP, LLC

Curtis D. Kleckler, CPA

Member

Rockford, Iilinois
December 11, 2024
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